ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 26, 2006
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn

Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 349

"An Act relating to legislator salary and benefits; establishing
the Citizens' Comm ssion on Legislative Salary and Benefits and
defining its powers and duties and abolishing the State O ficers
Conpensati on Conmi ssion; and providing for an effective date by
repealing secs. 9 and 12, ch. 124, SLA 1986."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 273
"An Act relating to the dividends of individuals claimng
al | owabl e absences; and providing for an effective date.”
- MOVED CSHB 273(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS( S)

Commi ssi oner, Departnent of Adm nistration

Scott J. Nordstrand - Juneau
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Li eut enant Gover nor Desi gnee

WIlliamA. Corbus - Juneau

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 26, 2006



- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

WlliamWlters - Fairbanks
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 278

"An Act relating to the Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority;
permtting the Alaska Muinicipal Bond Bank Authority or a
subsidiary of the authority to assist state and nunicipal
governnmental enployers by issuing bonds and other commerci al
paper to enable the governnental enployers to prepay all or a
portion of the governnental enployers' shares of the unfunded
accrued actuari al l[itabilities of retirement systens and
aut hori zi ng governnental enployers to contract with and to issue
bonds, notes, or commercial paper to the authority or its
subsidiary corporation for that purpose; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 278 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 349

SHORT TITLE. COWM SSI ON ON LEG COWP. & ALLOWANCES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 09/ 06 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 6/ 06
01/ 09/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 09/ 06 (H) STA, FIN

01/ 26/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 273
SHORT TI TLE. PFD: DELAY PAYMENT FOR ALLOWABLE ABSENCES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

04/ 18/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 18/ 05 (H STA, FIN

05/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 05/ 05 (H Heard & Held

05/ 05/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 12/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 12/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

01/ 17/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- January 26, 2006



01/ 17/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 17/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 19/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 19/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 19/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 26/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 278
SHORT TI TLE: RETI REMENT SYSTEM BONDS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

04/ 19/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 19/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

01/ 12/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 12/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 12/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 17/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 17/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 17/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 19/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 19/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 19/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 24/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
01/ 24/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 24/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 26/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 349, as sponsor; testified
during the hearing on HB 273, as sponsor.

JACQUELI NE TUPQU, St aff

to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: On behalf of Representative Wyhrauch,
sponsor, reviewed the changes made in Version L of HB 349.

CHRI S POAG, Assistant Attorney General (AQ
Civil Division

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 26, 2006



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
273.

SHARON BARTQN, Director

Per manent Fund Di vi dend Di vi si on

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
273.

MARY LOU KELSEY

Homer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hersel f in
opposition to HB 273.

TRACIE L. BROWN

Honmer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself during the
hearing on HB 273.

M KE M LLI GAN

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on HB 273.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 278.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:05:58 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the
call to order. Representatives Ranras and G uenberg arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

HB 349- COMWM SSI ON ON LEG.  COWP. & ALLOMNNCES

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 349, "An Act relating to legislator salary and
benefits; establishing the CGtizens' Commission on Legislative
Salary and Benefits and defining its powers and duties and
abolishing the State Oficers Conpensation Conm ssion; and
providing for an effective date by repealing secs. 9 and 12, ch.
124, SLA 1986."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 26, 2006



8:06: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE  WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature,
introduced HB 349, as sponsor. He paraphrased part of his
sponsor statenment [included in the commttee packet], which
read:

House Bill 349 creates a commission that wll nake
recommendations regarding |egislative pay. It does
not raise salaries of |egislators, but does provide an
i ncrease for the Speaker of the House and President of
the Senate from $500 per year to $500 per nonth.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH i ndi cated which version of the bill he
would like the commttee to work with.

8:08: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt commttee substitute (CS) for
HB 349, Version 24-LS1391\L, Wayne, 1/25/06, as a work draft
There being no objection, Version L was before the conmttee.

8:09:41 AM

JACQUELINE TUPQU, Staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch
Al aska State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Wyhrauch,
sponsor, reviewed the changes nmade in Version L of HB 349. She
said nost of the changes were just a matter of semantics and

| ogi stical problens. One substantive change was to the
timefranme of the bill, mking it "a little nore indefinite."
She said that will allow the commission to flesh out what it

wants its process to be.
8:10: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said until HB 349, she wasn't aware that
current statute already provides a conmmssion to review
| egislative salaries, and that that commssion includes a
busi ness executive, a representative from a nonpartisan voters'
organi zation, a person with public admnistration experience,
and a representative of a |abor organization appointed by the
governor and confirmed by the |egislature. Under the new pl an,
she noted, the nenbers of the conm ssion would be appointed by
the President of the Senate and the [Speaker] of the House and
there would be no provision to have those appointees confirned

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- January 26, 2006



by the |egislature. She stated that she is unconfortable wth
potentially renoving all public participation.

8:11:18 AM

M5. TUPQU explained that the legislature currently has the power
to set its own pay and can't delegate that to sonmeone el se;
therefore, "for that <citizens' commssion currently on the
statutes book to be inplenented there would have to be a
constitutional change."

8:12: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH noted that attorneys said delegating
the authority to set legislative pay to the executive branch
seens to a cause a problem between separation of powers.
Regardi ng Representative Gardner's concern about public notice
he said, " You can bet that if the legislature's going to
raise its pay, there better be a public process or there' |l be
heck to pay fromthe public."”

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated for clarification, "That's not in
this bill; that's a decision that could be mde down the road
one way or the other "

8:13:12 AM

M5. TUPQU directed attention to page 4, beginning on line 5 of
Version L, which read:

The comm ssion shall give reasonable public notice of
its prelimnary findings and recomrendations, solicit
public comments, and give due regard to the public
comments, before submtting a final report under (d)
of this section.
8:13:26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said, "I'll stand corrected."”
8:13: 32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if there is anything in the bill that
relates to "office allowance."” He said that has not been
changed for several years.

8:13:46 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied, "No, that per diem - none of
that - is addressed. All this does is set a salary."”

M5. TUPQU, in response to a comment by Representative Wyhrauch
noted that legislators are currently paid at a range 7.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH surm sed, "Per diem | suppose, as part
of ... pay to a legislator would be considered, but that's up to
the commission and the legislature. Al this does is really set
up the nmechanismfor determning all this."

8:14:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concluded, "So, ... they could |ook at
of fice |l ounge, or per diem or anything else.”

8:14: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said, "There's no restriction on what
t hey woul d | ook at."

8:15: 08 AM

V. TUPQU, in response to a followup question from
Representative Lynn, surmsed that a legislative page is paid at
| east at a Range 10.

8:15:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "Separate from this group is the
$500. My first inpression is ... we're making a decision on
just two nenbers. Wuldn't the committee be a better group to

make the determ nation of $500, whether it's a nonth or a year
L

8:16: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH r esponded as fol | ows:
Wien | read through the statute in preparing for the
bill, I saw that those positions were already

segregated out, and it already said "$500 per year"
for the [Senate] President and the Speaker [of the

House] . And so, ... just in the process of drafting
the bill ... with the drafter, | said, "WlIl, change
the ... word 'year' to 'nmonth'." So, the statute had

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 26, 2006



al ready segregated those offices out and ... | don't
remenber the year that that was inplenmented - decades

ago. And again, just knowing how nuch work the
Speaker [of the House] and the [Senate] President do
t hroughout the year, every day, | just thought $500
per nonth, ... even that, seened (indisc.) conpared to

t he wor kl oad.
8:16: 50 AM

M5. TUPQU noted that the Alaska State Constitution shows that
segregati on.

8:17:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Legislative Council is currently
aut hori zed to change "our salary."

8:17: 24 AM

M5. TUPQU responded that the legislative body, as a whole, has
the authority to set their own pay.

8:17:46 AM

VB. TUPQU, in response to a followup question from
Representative Gatto, said HB 349 provides that the conm ssion
woul d release [its prelimnary findings]. Ni nety days from the

rel ease date, if Legislative Council does not take any action
the report of those prelimnary findings would be adopted in the
policies therein by Legislative Council.

8:18: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated her concern regarding the |ack of
public process. Even though the |anguage, as previously
di scussed, would require the comrission to report to Legislative
Council, the language on page 4, line 17, shows that Legislative
Council "may publish the final report”. She enphasized the word

"may" and said it makes her a little unconfortable that there
woul d be no requirenent that the report be nade available to the
public.

M5. TUPQU surm sed that the reason for the use of the perm ssive

"may" is because the commssion would have already printed a
report and distributed it to the public. |If Legislative Counci

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 26, 2006



doesn't nmke any changes, she suggested, it would be redundant
to publish the report again.

8:19:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked, "If [Legislative] Council doesn't
act, and the reconmendations becone public, then there isn't

necessarily any report or announcenment of that. s that
correct?"

8:19: 58 AM

M5. TUPQU replied, "Not past the conmmssion's report.” She

explained that if Legislative Council accepts the report from
the comm ssion by doing nothing, then that becomes "the report”
at that point.

8:20: 37 AM

M5. TUPQU, in response to a request for clarification from Chair
Seaton, said the language in the bill regarding public notice
[is on page 4, lines 5-8] and follows the previously noted
| anguage about the commission's prelimnary findings. She
reiterated that if Legislative Council does nothing, the final
report that was provided by the comm ssion becones policy.

8:21:30 AM

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that there is nothing in the |anguage
that says the final report is given to the public. He remarked
that the final report could be significantly different than the
prelimnary report. He asked, "Was it the intent to not nake
t hat public?"

8:22: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested the concern stated by both
Representative Gardner and Chair Seaton is in reference to the

use of the word "may" on page 4, line 17. He nentioned changi ng
"may" to "shall" to ensure that the report is namde public. He
said there is no desire to pull the wool over anyone's eyes. He
added, "Utimately the truth wll out." He asked if the

cormittee would like a conceptual amendnment to change "may" to
"shal | ".

8:22:57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- January 26, 2006



CHAI R SEATON answered in the affirmative. He said the conmttee
woul d probably offer a conceptual anmendnent to require that the
final report be sent to Legislative Council and to the public.

8:23:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned the "Mdison anmendnent,”
whi ch he said provided that U S. Congress nmay not raise its own
sal ary. He explained that this nmeans no salary increase can
beconme effective until after the next Congress convenes. He
said when he served [in the legislature] in the past, he
introduced a ratification of the Madison Amendnent, which was
not adopted. He stated he thinks it would be a good idea to add
that provision to HB 349. He clarified that the |anguage would
provide that no |egislative pay raise can becone effective until
after the next election. That way, he said, people will have a
chance to vote "if they don't like the way this is going to take
pl ace. "

8:24: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH stated that he is not in favor of
adding that |anguage at this point, but would like to have a
chance to consider that issue separately.

8:25:11 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that no amendnents had been nade yet and
won't be until after public testinony has been taken.

8: 25: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER turned to [the |ast sentence] of Section
13 [on page 4], which read as foll ows:

Any part of the commssion's report not rejected or
anended by the Alaska Legislative Council and any
amendnent to the report made by the Al aska Legislative
Council under AS 24.10.130 take effect on the first
day of the first full nonth following the |ast day of
the legislative session in which the final report is
i ssued or the anmendnent is passed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if t hat neans that i f t he

conmi ssion recommends that |legislators are paid $100,000, for
exanpl e, and Legislative Council anends that to $120, 000, that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- January 26, 2006



woul d autonmatically beconme | aw w thout any other review, debate,
or discussion.

8:26:10 AM

MS5. TUPQU suggested that M. Wayne, the attorney who drafted the
bill, would be better suited to answer questions regarding
wor di ng.

8:27:14 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, in response to followup questions from
Representative Gardner, reiterated that there is no intent to
"sneak one past anyone,” and he would not object to a conceptual
anmendnent that would include sone sort of discussion or review
"by sonebody el se.™

8:27:56 AM

M5. TUPQU said it's inportant to note that the |egislature has
the power to set its own pay and cannot delegate that job to
sonmeone else. She said, "... Wiat we've tried to do is put the
public in the process, because they currently aren't."

8:28:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH recognized that unfortunately many
amendnents are adopted w thout any public comment or testinony
what soever and becone |aw without people knowi ng the effect or
meani ng of them

8:28: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to Section 8 of Version L, which
read as foll ows:

*Sec. 8. AS 39.23.210 is anended to read:

A nmenber of the commssion shall neet the
gualifications of AS 39.05.100 and may not be enpl oyed
by the state, including the University of Al aska,
serve as a nenber of another state board, comm ssion
or authority, or hold elective state or nunicipal
of fice during nenbership on the conm ssion.

CHAI R SEATON indicated that that |anguage shows a significant
change in the bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 26, 2006



8:29:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to page 4, line 19
and said potentially [the comm ssion] could give the report five
days before the end of the session wthout giving anyone a
chance for anyone to do anything, and it would take effect
i mredi ately. He questioned why the phrase, "[DURING THE FI RST
10 DAYS OF A LEGQ SLATI VE SESSI ON] " was del et ed.

8:30:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH sai d he views that decision as "wanting
to give sone nore leeway to both the legislature and the
comm ssion in reporting, as opposed to restricting it to
providing it within the first 10 or 15 days and [putting] sone
arbitrary nunber on it."

8:31: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it would do just the
opposi te. He explained that that effective date would remain
the sane, which would be after session ended. By allow ng the
report to be given later, less time is being given for public
scrutiny, he said.

8:31: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he thought 15 days would be too
restrictive.

8:32: 07 AM

M5. TUPQU pointed out that if Legislative Council does not take
action, there would always be a 90-day review period "before it
would take effect.” In response to request a from
Representative Guenberg, she offered to find where that
| anguage is in the bill.

8:33: 01 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he wanted to clarify that the report published
by Legislative Council would be the final report issued.

8:33:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH added that Legislative Council serves
as a conduit for the conmssion's report. In response to Chair

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 26, 2006



Seaton, he confirnmed that the dates that are being discussed are
inregard to the issuance of the Legislative Council report.

8:33:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the only reference to "90 days”
that he could find in the bill is on page 5, line 24. He stated
that lots of comm ssions nmake their reports on the first day of
the session. He asked the sponsor to consider that, and said he
woul d be inclined to offer such an amendnent.

8:34:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned to page 4, line 22, and suggested
the word "take" should have an "s" at the end.

8:35:11 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one to
testify, closed public testinony.

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 349 was heard and hel d.

HB 273- PED: DELAY PAYMENT FOR ALLOWABLE ABSENCES

8:35:58 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 273, "An Act relating to the dividends of individuals
claimng allowable absences; and providing for an effective
date."

[Before the commttee was CSHB 273, Version 24-LS0871\G Cook
5/ 3/ 05.]

8:36:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 273, stated his concern regarding the |[egal
inmplications of allow ng stair-stepping exenptions, for exanple.
He said he spoke with the director of the Permanent Fund
Dividend Division and the Ofice of the Attorney General and
suggested representatives from those entities present feedback
to the commttee.

8:38:31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- January 26, 2006



CHRIS POAG Assistant Attorney GCeneral (AG, Gvil Division,
Department of Law, said he has been attending hearings on the
bill and heard discussion on anendnents, sone of which raise
equal protection concerns. He nentioned an amendnent idea from
Representative Gardner that he said would not be a problem He
menti oned an anendnent idea by Representative Lynn that would
exenpt out the allowable absences of the military. He said
given the statistics he has seen, he has a problemwth treating
that cl ass separately.

8:39:45 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that the comittee had adopted an
anendnent that would Ilet anyone wth an allowable absence
receive his/her permanent fund dividend (PFD) for the first two
years and after that it would be held until the person returned
to Al aska. He said that applied to all classes of allowable
absences. He asked M. Poag to confirm that that anmendnment is
t he one he did not think would raise a constitutional problem

8:40: 09 AM

MR. POAG responded that the anendnent does not pose a problem
"on the face of it." He said there is a commobn sense approach
that the longer a person is gone, the less likely he/she is to
return. He said, "Representative Gardner's anmendnent seens to
adopt that conmon sense approach, and as long as it applies to
all categories, it doesn't raise the protection concern.”

8:40: 57 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked what the inpact of the anendnents that raised
t he probl ens of equal protection would have on "the program™

8:41:19 AM

MR. POAG responded as foll ows:

VWll, | suspect ... we would have an individual who
would apply for a pernmanent fund dividend on one of
t hese all owabl e absence categori es. They' d be denied

the dividend, and they would appeal, and they would
allege that they're being treated disparately from a
specific group - the mlitary - and that they should
al so have been given the exenption that the mlitary
was given.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 26, 2006



MR. POAG noted that mlitary and students statistically have
about the sane rate of return; approximately 65 percent do not
return. So, if a student were to challenge that in court by
arguing the statistics, inevitably [the State of Al aska] would
end up before the [Alaska] Supreme Court trying to justify why
it treated one category differently than another. M. Poag said
his concern was that the exenption for mlitary seened to be
based on need; however, the provision for allowable absences is
really designed to say that if a person is not physically
present in Alaska during the qualifying year, that person's
absence has to be consistent with his/her intent to return. He
clarified, "Exenpting a group based on their need to receive the
PFD is inconsistent with the purpose of ensuring that they're
per manent residents."”

8:42: 55 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he has heard that "those kind of cases" m ght
result in other problens concerning the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) and taxability.

8:43: 09 AM

MR. POAG said he hasn't heard any testinony regarding IRS
qualifications or disqualifications.

8:43:42 AM

SHARON BARTON, Director, Permanent Fund Dividend Division

Department  of Revenue, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg regarding a survey the committee had
requested on allowable absences, said she could offer sone
information verbally, but the job ended up being a bigger one
than anticipated, thus the witten report is still not "polished
up. " She said information was also requested regarding return
trends. At end of ten years, the percentage of people who do
not return to Alaska in the following categories was found to
be: Secondary school, 67 percent; Caring for the termnally
ill, 38 percent; nerchant marines, 50 percent; settling an
estate, 33 percent; and caring for a famly nenber, 43 percent.

In response to Representative G uenberg, she said those are the
primary categories. She said there is a congressional staff
category, and the data shows that about 50 percent of them have
not returned after 10 years. She added, however, that sone of
t hose people are still in office.

8:46: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE =~ GRUENBERG  observed t hat t he acconpanyi ng
dependents, active mlitary, secondary schools, and students,
are "far and away higher than the other categories in not
returning.”

8:47:32 AM
M5. BARTON confirnmed that's correct.
8:47: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG asked, "If we |ooked at t hose
categories as presenting a nmuch higher statistical rate of
nonreturn and [treated] those differently from the other
categories, wuld that be |legally defensible?"

8:48: 14 AM

MR. POAG said if the commttee decides to treat allowable
absences differently based upon statistics, then he strongly
agrees Wwth Representative Guenberg's suggestion [at the
previous hearing] to have legislative findings and purposes.
However, if allowable absences will be treated equally across
the board, there would be less of a need for those |egislative
pur poses and findings. He continued:

The allowable absence categories go to the heart of
whet her or not the person applying for the permanent
fund dividend is an Al aska resident. Alaska residency
is physical presence wth the intent to remain

i ndefinitely. It also is, if you're not physically
present, your i nt ent to return and remain
indefinitely. ... One of the objective areas we | ook
at is: |Is your absence consistent with your intent to

return? Those 13 allowabl e absence categories that
you all have adopted in this statutory section are a

| egislative finding that we believe ... their absence
is consistent with their intent to return. ... You
fol ks probably did that based on comobn sense approach
and also looking at the need - the reason why they
wer e gone. It alnost seened that it was beyond their
control

: We've now discovered, statistically, that a good
portion of those folks aren't returning like we had
probably presuned they were. However, you fol ks get

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 26, 2006



the ability to draw the line in the sand to say when

it is that there rate of return is too low ... to say
that it's palatable - that they are likely to remain
Al aska residents. In other words, "Is their absence

truly consistent with their intent to return?”

MR. POAG said he thinks that's a policy call. He said he thinks
Representative Guenberg is absolutely correct that a person's
case wll be better in front of whatever court if the
statistical evidence is higher. He offered further details. He
said, "You folks get to draw that conclusion as to what is the
anount of rate of return that is palatable ...." He said the

[ Alaska] Suprene Court has said that the legislature has given
[the Permanent Fund Dividend Division] broad discretion to
deci de who are pernmanent Al aska residents. He continued:

We've gotten great rulings fromthem and if this body
: makes findings that 10 percent is just not
acceptable, | think the suprene court would probably
acknow edge that. However, clearly | feel on better
ground standing before the suprene court if it's 60-70
percent of nonreturn rates.

8:51:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered an exanple of two people |eaving
for school, one born in Aaska and the other a two-year
resident, and he asked if the rate of return is different.

MR. POAG said he doesn't know the statistical answer to that
however, based on statute, both those people are considered
Al aska residents and have to be treated the sane.

8:52: 59 AM

M5. BARTON confirmed that that information had not been broken
down in that manner.

8:53: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she would |ike to know how the
probability of return changes for each class after two years.

8:53: 33 AM

M5. BARTON said currently the trend | ooks |ike nost people from
the mlitary and "acconpanyi ng groups” don't cone back after the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 26, 2006



first year, and by five years nost have dropped off the radar
screen. She said it is a little bit different with students.
More students that |eave for one to two years tend to conme back
to the state than not. Once the students stay Qutside for three
or nore years, nost of them don't cone back. The ot her groups
are so small, M. Barton said, that nmeking generalities about
them is difficult. Not wi t hstanding that, she said, "They too
appear that if they don't conme back in the first year or two,
they don't conme back."

8:54:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his appreciation of the
answers from the w tnesses. Regardi ng Representative Gatto's
previously stated question regarding whether a person who is
born here is treated differently than a person who has cone to
the state for only a few years, he suggested that that sort of
anal ysis may run afoul of a certain suprene court decision.

8: 55: 39 AM

MR. PQOAG responded:

W'd be on thin ice. ... It depends on how that
| egislation was crafted and it would depend on what
the statistical evidence showed. If we're

creating allowable absence categories because we've
di scovered that certain folks who are absent are nore
likely to return than other folks, | think maybe we
woul d be okay; but if we attenpt in any way, shape, or
form to ... «create classes of pernmanent Al aska
residents, we're definitely in trouble. We cannot do
t hat . Once you neet the standard of the PFD
eligibility, you have to be treated just as everybody
el se, whether you need the PFD, whether you don't need
the PFD, whether you cane here two years ago, or

whet her you've been here for 25 years. You're an
Al aska resident for purpose of the PFD and you get it.
However, ... if we are talking about categories of

fol ks who we have evidence to show that they're nore
likely to return than other <categories, that's the
heart and spirit of what the allowable absence and
exceptions are. They're bright line rules that nake
it admnistratively practical for Drector Barton's
division to say, "These 12 categories get to be absent
because we've decided they're likely to return; the
rest of you can only be absent for up to 180 days, and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 26, 2006



you're absence also needs to be consistent with your
intent to return. So, | think those bright line rules
are allowable, but | think there would have to be
pretty strong statistical evidence to treat different
categories of Alaska residents differently. And ... |
think there would have to be a |ot nore on the record
than there is today.

8:57:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it would be dangerous not to treat
the statistically simlar categories the sane.

8:58: 52 AM
MR. POAG enphasized his agreenent. He said, "If we have
statistical evidence that these five categories are not likely

to return and statistical evidence that these three categories
are likely to return, we should follow that statistical evidence
and treat them accordingly."

8:58: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the comittee had not
received the statistics regarding secondary education students.

8:59: 21 AM
M5. BARTON nentioned ot her data she has begun to conpil e.
9:01: 20 AM

CHAI R SEATON, in response to the discussion about data, said,
"The whole purpose of this discussion is to make sure we treat
everybody equally." He indicated that [focusing on the data
could result in] the commttee getting far off its objective of
ensuring that "the permanent fund reflects Al aska residency."
He stat ed:

W have to renmenber that wunder this program as

proposed in the bill, everyone has the opportunity to
qualify for allowable absences and everyone has the
opportunity to return. And that these are choices

that those people make not to return to Alaska, in
every category. And so, people can sinply qualify for
their allowable absence permanent fund dividend by
doing exactly what they're certifying, and that is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 26, 2006



[by] returning to Alaska at the end of that allowable
absence. And so, personally, as the chairman, |I'm not
going to support it, and | hope the rest of the
committee doesn't get into trying to parse difference
bet ween peopl e on al |l owabl e absences ...

9:03: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he appreciates Chair Seaton's
coment s. He remarked that the bill is based upon an idea that
Chair Seaton articul ated | ast year.

9:03: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conmented that he put his nane on the
bill because he was concerned that |ots of people were abusing
the system

9:04: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that some coll ege students have to go
Qutside because a line of study is not offered in Al aska. He
said students may make financial and career decisions based on
an assunption that was in place at the tine of the decision. He
stated his concern that those students could come back and sue
the state because the parameters were changed nmid course. He
asked if that could be a legitimte argunent.

9:05:46 AM

MR. POAG said they could nmake the claim but his response would
be that the PFD is a statutory devise and not a vested property
right; a person only gets one if he/she qualifies on an annual
basi s. He said the suprenme court has said this, as well. He
noted that any changes effected to the PFD today would be for
next year's PFD and would not affect "the PFD they're applying
for now "

9:06: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said students could choose to drop
their Alaska residency and beconme a resident of the state in
which they attend school and, doing so, would receive instate
tuition, which he said is of far greater value than the PFD

9:07:17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 26, 2006



MR. POAG told Representative Gatto that those students who nmay
be counting on receiving a PFD would get one, they would just
get it when they returned to the state.

9:07: 22 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded Representative Gatto that the students on
al |l owabl e absences would get their PFD for the first tw years,
after which tine it would be held.

9:07:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was thinking about the Longevity
Bonus [which Al aska seniors received until the program was
ended] . He indicated that [the seniors] had an expectation in
that case, and asked, "Has that ever been challenged and
defeated, or has it sinply never been chall enge?"

9:07:35 AM

MR. POAG said he has never participated in "giving |egal advise
to the Longevity Bonus fund" and is not famliar wth that
program

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH proffered, "The case, as | understand
it, was dismssed as sunmary judgment grounds as |egislative
policy and has not appealed to the suprene court "

9: 08: 58 AM

MR POAG in response to a suggestion from Representative
Gruenberg, said currently a person is only allowed to qualify
for allowable absences for 10 years. He said the legislature
needs to make a policy decision based on the statistical
evidence that it is acceptable for those on an all owabl e absence
to be gone "with 10, or 20, or 30 percent rates of return.” He
said, "I don't knowif it's any nore defensible." He continued:

| guess if | had to choose one of the two options for
def ense purposes, | would think a three-, or a five-,
or six-year ... cut-off would be easier to defend than
a series of categories and exceptions, because groups
are always going to say, "WlIl, what about ne, how
cone there's not a category for nme?" And then one
category nmay say, "Well, why are they getting treated
this way and |"'mnot getting treated this way?

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the legislature constantly
sees people requesting to add new categories to allowable
absences. He concluded that if the cut-off time were changed to
five years, "that would be defensible," easier for the Permanent
Fund Dividend Division to manage, and would probably result in
|l ess lawsuits in the |ong run.

9:10: 48 AM

CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative Guenberg and
comments from M. Poag, said the latter was discussing current
st at ut e.

9:11:11 AM

MR. POAG in response to a request from Representative G uenberg
for overall clarification, said current statute provides that a
person may get an all owabl e absence for up to 10 years, no nore.
The bill would broaden that |anguage and allow soneone an
al | owabl e absence for up to 10 years, after which the person's
eligibility would be conditioned upon his/her return. He stated
that Version G assuming it "has Representative Gardner's
provision in it," wuld provide that al l owabl e absence
categories get the PFD for the first two years, after which
their eligibility is conditioned upon their return and their
being present in the state wthout an allowable absence
necessary. At that point, he said, those people would be
eligible for the PFDs that had been hel d back.

9:12: 53 AM

CHAI R SEATON reopened public testinmony only for those who had
not had a chance to testify already.

9:12: 58 AM

MARY LOU KELSEY testified on behalf of herself in opposition to
HB 273. She stated that students are Al aska residents, even
whil e studying Qutside; they live and work in Al aska when out of
school and pay out of state tuition. She asked the conmittee
not to penalize these students by denying and delaying their
PFDs, which are greatly needed for current college costs. By

del aying paynment of the PFD, she opined, the legislature is
puni shing those Al aska residents just because they are students.
She said it is a hardship on famlies. She asked the committee
to give these students equal protection and not termnate their
constitutional rights based on arbitrary guesses about their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 26, 2006



intent to return, but rather to pursue those who are really
commtting fraud concerning the PFD

9:14:29 AM

TRACIE L. BROMWN, testifying on behalf of herself, said her son
is currently a college student paying out-of-state tuition. She
concurred with the previous testinony of M. Kelsey. She said
she feels that "this bill arose from the insinuation of fraud,"
whi ch she said is insulting. She said her son spends the sunmer
session at hone, working in Al aska. She indicated that asking
students to commt to living in Alaska is a double standard.
She explained by asking, out of the entire population of
Al askans living in state who are receiving their PFDs, how many
woul d still be residents in 10 years.

9:16: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS told Ms. Brown that he is sensitive to her
situation, but asked her to answer the follow ng question:

If this legislation were enacted and your son's
permanent fund [dividend] was held until he returned
to Alaska, what would his |ife be like four years from
now if, when he canme hone from college, he was the
beneficiary of the four permanent funds ...? Wuldn't
that ... be of sone value unto itself that he would
have a nest egg?

[ AN UNI DENTI FI ED PERSON uttered a remark that was heard via the
Legislative Information Ofice (LIO teleconference system but
was not intended for public record.]

9:18:12 AM

M5. BROWN, after enphasizing that the remark of the unidentified
speaker was not her own response, stated that what
Representative Ranras said seens valid - it seens like it would

be a positive thing for her son to get a chunk of noney upon his
return. However, she stressed her son's need is to receive the
noney now.

9:19: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS clarified that his question is not about

what is lost by surrendering the permanent fund [dividend] each
year. He said he wants to know "what benefit would be derived

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 26, 2006



from college students or mlitary whose permanent [fund
di vidends] are held until they do return.” He said it wouldn't
be noney |ost forever, but rather noney held until their return
to Al aska.

9:19: 39 AM

M5. BROM said it would be the sane as if her own PFD had been
held and she was given a lunp sum every four years, rather than

receiving the PFD every year. She stated, "There's no tinme in
our life that our noney is nore valuable to us than those
col |l ege days." She asked Representative Ranras if that answered

hi s questi on.
9:20: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied, "No, it did not, but | thank you
anyway. "

9:21:17 AM

M KE M LLIGAN, testifying on behalf of hinmself, said the PFD was
never nmeant to be an entitlenment, but rather a way to keep
Al aska's noney in the hands of Al askans versus in the hands of

gover nment . He said the children [of the previous testifiers]
are not being punished if they don't get their PFD checks, "they
woul d be punished if they ... [had] to pay a fee." He revealed

that he is the parent of three students in Alaska - two in state
and one out of state. The one who is going to school Qutside is
in her second year of [doctoral] school and "she doesn't claim a
resi dency."

MR, MLLIGAN focused on who is being punished. He stated,
"There's no group of Al askans nore punished under current tax
code and our PFD awarding scenario than people who own property
in Alaska and pay tax on that property. He said Al askans have
not been asked to be citizens of the state by paying an incone
t ax. He nentioned a bill by forner House Representative
Jeannette Janes, which proposed a property tax exenption from
state incone tax and "hobbled that to a PFD application.™ He
qguesti oned how nany people would be willing to "drop $100 during
the PFD application in order to get $700 or $900 in the fall."

MR MLLIGAN stated that he thinks HB 273 is a courageous
pr oposal . He recalled hearing that approxinmately 17,000 people
"get a check CQutside." He indicated that the bill has a
positive benefit of educating the public. He said he thinks

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 26, 2006



it's time to ask who is being rewarded on the state's tax policy
and whom the state wants to reward. He predicted everyone would
want to sign up for a private account to be managed by the

gover nment . He added, "Everybody would sign up for that, and
they could still leave after a certain amount of tine."” He
concluded, "I applaud the debate, but | think it's tine to |ook
at possibly [an] absolute small half a percent of your federa
income tax ... hobble that to a PFD application.™

9:25:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
9:25:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO regarding Representative Ranras' previous
guestion about receiving a nest egg, said:

| think the correct answer to that is: if a person is
Qutside on an allowable absence in a school and does
not receive their permanent fund dividend, they've
simply raised their debt on their Qutside costs. I
don't believe that the people who are attending school
Qutside, by and |arge, have all the noney they need to
do that. I think they engage in debt. The nest egg
that would be here would sinply not be a nest egg as
much as it would be a way to pay off the debt. But it
woul d al so be interest-free, while the debt would have

interest. So, in the end, | believe the woman who
was testifying is indicating there is a net loss to a
student doing that.

9:26: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS interpreted that a lot of the testinony
that has been heard on HB 273 suggests that "once you |ose your
permanent fund [dividend] it goes away forever." He said it's
not a net loss bill. When a student cones back to Al aska, he
said, he/she is mde "alnobst whole." He said [Ms. Barton]
manages a small group of people that work hard and many of the
guestions being asked are difficult to answer. He provided an
anal ogy of going through security at an airport even if a person
is not a terrorist, and he explained that he is an advocate of

setting standards. He noted that 55 percent of the people in
his district are in the mlitary, thus he has a hypersensitivity
to those in the mlitary. He also noted that he was a student

who would have been hurt had he not been able collect a PFD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- January 26, 2006



however, he reenphasized the inportance of setting a standard
Representative Ranras concluded by stating his support of HB
273.

9:28:37 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what would stop sonmeone from com ng

back to get their noney and then turning around and |eaving the
state again.

9:28: 57 AM

CHAI R SEATON expl ai ned that the purpose of the bill is to ensure
that people do exactly what they say they wll do, which is to
come back and establish their residency. To do so, he said

they would have to reside in the state for 185 days in a year.
After that, there is nothing to stop those people from | eaving;
however, he expressed the hope that after comng back and
reestabl i shing thensel ves, people would decide to stay.

9:31: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt Amendnment 1, |abeled 24-
LS0871\F. 2, Cook, 1/23/06. He said it is basically an anmendnent
to protect the mlitary. Amendnent 1 read as foll ows:

Page 4, line 6, following "AS 43.23.008(a)(1) - (8) or
(10) - (13).":

Insert "This subsection does not apply to the
paynent of a current year dividend to an individual
claimng an all owabl e absence under AS 43.23.008(a)(3)
if, for a period during the qualifying vyear, the
i ndi vi dual

(1) was serving as a nenber of the arned
forces of the United States on active duty

(A) at a location outside of the United
States and outside of North, South, and Central
Aneri ca;

(B) considered to be a renote tour of duty
by the arned forces of the United States; or

(C at a location outside of the state, has
a spouse or mnor or disabled dependent, and the
spouse and each mnor or disabled dependent is
eligible for the current vyear dividend w thout
claimng an all owabl e absence under AS 43.23.008; or

(2) received care in a hospital outside the
state while

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 26, 2006



(A serving on active duty as a nenber of
the arned forces of the United States; or
(B) a spouse or mnor or disabled dependent of an
i ndi vidual serving on active duty as a nenber of the
armed forces of the United States who is eligible for
a current year dividend."

9:31:46 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the commttee did not yet have a copy of
Amendnent 1.

9:32: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, at the request of Chair Seaton, wthdrew
his notion to adopt Amendnent 1 until the commttee received a

copy.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:32:14 AMto 9:36: 06 AM

9: 36: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN repeated his notion to adopt Anendnent 1
[text provided previously].

9:37:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated his understandi ng that Version F was already
before the commttee as a work draft.

9:37:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated that Anmendnent 1 would protect the
mlitary, which, he added, protects "us." He offered further
details.

9:38: 10 AM

CHAI R SEATON obj ect ed. He said [Amendnent 1] would violate the
state's constitutional due process and equal protection.

9:38: 36 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Lynn voted in favor
of Anmendnent 1. Representatives Gatto, El ki ns, Ranr as,
Gruenberg, and Seaton voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnent 1

failed by a vote of 1-5.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 26, 2006



9:39:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report CSHB 273, Version 24-
LS0871\ F, Cook, 1/ 18/ 06, out of commttee wth individual
recommendations and a zero fiscal note.

9:40: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN obj ect ed. He enphasized that he thinks the
intent of bill is good, but he wants to nmake it better. He
stated that the bill brings blatant discrimnation against

mlitary and students. He said the bill holds the PFD hostage
and is bad public policy. He suggested the appropriate policy
for getting people to return to the state is to provide better
educational and job opportunities, and to go after fraudul ent
claims. He stated his understanding that Al aska has the highest
percent of mnmilitary retirees and veterans of alnobst any other
state in the union. He stated his opposition of the bill.

9:42: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, in response to a conment from
Representative Gatto, explained that although there 1is no
reference to students in the failed Anendnent 1, he had added a
reference to students in his comrents.

9:42:15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO recalled that M. Poag had testified that

sub- groups cannot be made wi thout jeopardizing the entire bill
He stated, "Wiile | certainly support the mlitary saving their

dividend - and the students, and allowable absences for all
reasons, | think it's unfair to jeopardize the bill wth the
information that we have before us. And I'll be voting in favor
of it."

9:42: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS concurred wth Representative G@Gtto's
cooments and said he would support the bill "for the sane
reasons. "

9:43: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON expressed his appreciation to the Permanent Fund
Dividend Division for its wrk in pulling together the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -28- January 26, 2006



information requested by the committee. He summarized that $154
mllion has been paid out in PFDs to people who left the state
and did not return "to the qualifications." That noney woul d
have gone into the PFDs of true Al aska residents; none of the
nmoney would go to financing state governnent.

9:43: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would Ilike M. Barton to
continue her investigation and make her findings available to
the conmttee.

9:44:11 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he has asked M. Barton to finish the
requested work so that it could be reported to the conmttee and
“"follow the bill."

9:44: 27 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is conflicted on the bill, even
t hough he is a co-sponsor of it. He said his mnd is "still

open on the subject,” and he reiterated that he wants to see M.
Barton's future findings.

9:44: 44 AM
A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Elkins, Ranras,
Gardner, Guenberg, Gatto, and Seaton voted in favor of

reporting CSHB 273, Version 24-LS0871\F, Cook, 1/18/06, out of
coommittee wth individual recomendations and a zero fiscal
not e. Representative Lynn voted against it. Therefore, CSHB
273(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee by a vote of 6-1.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Adm nistration

9:45:44 AM

CHAI R SEATON agai n brought before the commttee the appointnent
of Scott J. Nordstrand to the position of Conmm ssioner of the
Departnment of Adm nistration. [ The confirmation hearing was
initiated on 1/24/06. ]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to advance the nane of Scott J.
Nordstrand to the joint session of the House and Senate; he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 26, 2006



requested unani nous consent. There being no objection, the
nom nation of Scott J. Nordstrand as Comm ssioner of the
Departnent of Adm nistration was advanced.

Li eut enant Gover nor Desi gnee

9:46: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON agai n brought before the commttee the appointnent
of WIlliam A Corbus to the position of Lieutenant Governor
Designee. [The confirmation hearing was initiated on 1/24/06.]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to advance the confirmation of
Wlliam A. Corbus to the joint session of the House and Senate;
he requested unani nous consent. There being no objection, the
nom nation of WIlliam A Corbus to the position of Lieutenant
Gover nor Desi gnee was advanced.

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQC)

9:46: 16 AM

CHAI R SEATON agai n brought before the commttee the appointnent
of WIlliam Walters to the Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion
(APOC). [The confirmation hearing was initiated on 1/24/06.]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to advance the confirmation of
Wlliam Walters to the joint session of the House and Senate; he
requested unani nous consent. There being no objection, the
nom nation of WIliam Walters to the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssi on was advanced.

HB 278- RETI REMENT SYSTEM BONDS

9:46: 46 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 278, "An Act relating to the Al aska Muinicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority; permtting the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority
or a subsidiary of the authority to assist state and nunicipa

governnmental enployers by issuing bonds and other comerci al

paper to enable the governnental enployers to prepay all or a
portion of the governnental enployers' shares of the unfunded
accrued actuari al l[tabilities of retirement systens and
aut hori zi ng governnental enployers to contract with and to issue
bonds, notes, or commercial paper to the authority or its

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 26, 2006



subsidiary corporation for that purpose; and providing for an
effective date.”

CHAI R SEATON noted that included in the commttee packet is a
menmor andum from Tamara Cook, Director, Legal Services, dated
1/ 6/ 06, and he asked the sponsor of the bill to address it.

9:46: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 278, stated that the nmenorandum is a response to a
guestion from Representative Wyhrauch regarding whether state
law prevents nunicipalities from issuing pension bonds.
Representative Hawker interpreted M. Cook's response to nean
that there are prohibitions in the constitution; however, other
structures exist that may very well neet constitutional nuster
He said he suspects M. Cook's answer was generic because she
did not have any specific proposal before her to evaluate.
Furthernore, the bill does not contenplate any specific
structure.

9:49: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that based on the concerns of the
House State Affairs Standing Committee and a request nade by
Chair Seaton, he did sonme research and devel oped an anendnent to
ensure that smaller nmunicipalities could band together and not
be excl uded. He said he learned from Legislative Legal and
Resear ch Servi ces t hat AS 29. 35.010(13) aut hori zes
muni ci palities to enter into cooperative agreenents. Section 13
read as foll ows:

(13) to enter into an agreenment, including an
agreenent for cooperative or joint admnistration of
any function or power with a nunicipality, the state,
or the United States;

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER encouraged the commttee to reach the
conclusion that he has reached: an anmendnent isS not necessary,
as the power exists in current statute [to allow municipalities
to enter into cooperative agreenents for pension obligation
bonds (POBs)].

9:51: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, referring back to the previously
menti oned | egal nenorandum said by "reading between the I|ines”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- January 26, 2006



he believes Ms. Cook is saying that nunicipalities cannot issue
general obligation bonds, but <could issue noral obligation
bonds. He asked Representative Hawker if that is his
i nterpretation.

9:52:13 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER r esponded as fol | ows:
If you were [inplying] a specific |[imtation to nora
obligation debt, | don't believe that's a correct
statenent. | believe there would be a variety of debt
vehicles to which she would be inferring in this ....
REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said he is hesitant to provide testinony
regarding the intent of soneone else's work product. Hi s
interpretation, he said, 1is that there are constitutional
prohi bitions against specific fornms of debt, but there are other
fornms of debt available that would be constitutional and have
been proven already with precedent established in the Al aska
Court System
9:53: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his understanding that genera
obligation (GO bonds are specifically prohibited.

9:53: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER concurred that "general obligation bonding
by the State of Al aska would be inappropriate and unacceptable.™

9:53:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG added, "Or a political subdivision.”
9:53: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answer ed yes.

9:53: 55 AM

CHAI R SEATON cited a sentence in the nenporandum at the end of
par agraph 3, which read:

O her exceptions to the restraint on borrowing are
found in Art. IX sec. 11, but it is not obvious to ne

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- January 26, 2006



how these exceptions mght be used to fund pension
pl ans.

CHAI R SEATON advised the conmittee that that remark by M. Cook
rai ses sone flags, and he said he thinks it mght be necessary
to get further [legal] clarification as the bill noves along
t hrough t he process.

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 7, line 24, of the bill,
which [with the preceding |ines 21-23] read:

(a) Subject to AS 44.85.100(b), the bond bank
authority may issue its bonds or notes in principal
anounts that it considers necessary to provide funds
for any purposes under this chapter, including

(1) the purchase of nunicipal bonds

CHAI R SEATON said he thought the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank
Authority ("Bond Bank") i ssued bonds. He asked for
clarification.

9: 55: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expl ai ned that that |anguage, which is in
Section 5 of the bill, is not new statute and anends the
| anguage on page 8, lines 5-7, which read as foll ows:

(5) assisting governnental enpl oyers to
prepay all or a portion of their share of the unfunded
accrued actuarial liabilities of retirenent systens,
with security as the bond bank authority considers
r easonabl e.

9:56: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 8, subsection (c), the
original language of which shows a bonding authority of
$500, 000, 000. He interpreted the new | anguage in the subsection
to mean "there's no |limt at all." The new | anguage read as
foll ows:

This subsection does not apply to (1) bonds or notes
issued to fund or refund bonds or notes; (2) bonds
notes, commercial paper, and other obligations issued
under AS 44.85.086 or 44.85.180(a)(5).

9: 56: 33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER indicated that there are no limts in
regard to refunding or obligations issued under the statutes
previously noted in subsection (c). In regard to aggregating
pension liabilities, he said, "The best execution would be if
municipalities <chose to cone together and place |arger
securities on the market and get a nuch nore efficient execution
with a ... greater ultimte savings to the issuer.”

9:57:20 AM

CHAI R SEATON recalled that the Departnment of Revenue testified
to the coomittee that the noral bonding authority was "somewhat
south of $6 billion." He said, "So, maybe as this goes into
[the House Finance Committee] you can see whether we want this
unlimted anmount, which could be nore than the noral bonding
authority of the state.”

9:57:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated for the record that he is commtted
to getting a thorough review and analysis by the Departnent of
Law, the Departnent of Revenue, the Bond Bank, and outside bond
counsel and authorities to ensure that the financial managenent
aspect of the bill wll be strongly addressed.

9:58: 51 AM

CHAI R SEATON referred to a sentence in M. Cook's nenorandum
whi ch read:

Art. I X, sec. 9 states in full: “"No debt shall be
contracted by any political subdivision of the State,
unl ess authorized for <capital inprovenents by its

governing body and ratified by a mjority vote of
those qualified to vote and voting on the question.”

CHAI R SEATON i ndicated that he does not see that issue addressed
anywhere in the bill "one way or the other." He stated the need
to find out if that requirenment is in place or exenpted.

9:59:43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he doesn't see any |lega
requi renent "that this be approved by a vote of the people.” He

menti oned an amendnent could be offered "to do that" and asked
Representative Hawker if he woul d object.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- January 26, 2006



10: 00: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER reiterated his sincere belief that the
existing statutory regulatory structure, as it applies to
muni cipalities and the authorities the state vests in those
muni ci palities, is adequate and provides appropriate public
protections. He continued:

Certainly we've discussed the possibility of a broader
authority being extended, specifically for this type
of transaction, through a constitutional anendnent
process to a general obligation bond. ... | Dbelieve
the subject and the question you' re broaching would be
best discussed in that context rather than in this
context, which is where we are definitely not making
any changes in our current constitutional authorities.

10: 01: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is looking into the drafting of
a constitutional anmendnent. He said he was concentrating on
anmending the article dealing with state contraction of debt and
he had not |ooked as nuch at the constitutional provisions
regarding the local contracting of debt. He nmentioned the
concept of putting both those issues together in the sane
amendment .

10: 02: 12 AM

CHAI R SEATON suggested that, in the interest of tine, the issue
be brought up at another tine. He stated his concern regarding
hard debt versus soft debt in relation to pension bonds. He
said the commttee was been told that the hard debt is a debt
obl i gati on. He said, "I don't want this to end up in court
|ater as to whether it should be a vote or not." He stated his
desire to get a full legal opinion as to whether pension bonds
woul d be exenpt fromthe requirenment of a vote of the people.

10: 03: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HB 278 out of committee
with individual recomrendati ons and the attached fiscal note.

10: 03: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that he had not received a copy of
the fiscal note.

10: 04: 26 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection. There being
none, HB 278 noved out of the House State Affairs Standing

Commi ttee.
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
10: 05: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- January 26, 2006



